
City of Cameron Minutes September 6, 2011 
 Page 1 
 

CITY OF CAMERON 
MINUTES 

SEPTEMBER 6, 2011 
 
 
REGULAR SESSION 
 
Frank A. Buck   P 
Mark L. Carr   P 
Dennis M. Clark  P 
Jerri Ann Eddins  P 
David Fry   P 
   

The City Council of the City of Cameron, Missouri met in Regular Session on Tuesday, 
the 6th day of September 2011, at six o’clock p.m. at City Hall.  Mayor Frank A. Buck led the 
Pledge of Allegiance to the flag of the United States of America.  
 

Mayor Frank A. Buck presided with the following Councilmembers present:  Mark L. 
Carr, Dennis M. Clark, Jerri Ann Eddins and David Fry.   Absent:  none.  

 
 Present were Interim City Manager Mark Gaugh, Attorney for the City Mitch Elliott and 
City Clerk Barbara J. O’Connor. 
 
 Minutes of the August 15, 2011 and August 22, 2011, meetings were approved as 
submitted with a unanimous voice vote on motion made by Councilmember Clark and seconded 
by Councilmember Carr. 
 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 
 Julie Becker, 424 East Third Street, stated she has concerns regarding the bill referencing 
sign requirements on tonight’s agenda. Ms. Becker is concerned about the digital sign at the 
intersection of Business 36 and Highway 69 and the potential safety issues it could create.   
 
 Jerod Bailey, 921 West Grand, was in attendance representing the Cameron Rotary Club.  
Mr. Bailey asked permission for the Club to sponsor a circus east of Wal-Mart in Crossroads 
Corporate Center. 
 
 6:05 p.m. Councilmember Clark recused himself from the Chamber stating a possible 
conflict of interest noting he is a member of the Cameron Rotary Club. 
 
 Interim City Manager Gaugh informed Council there were no concerns about using the 
site and the Cameron Police Department has approved the event.  Councilmember Carr moved to 
approve use of the location in Crossroads Corporate Center.  Councilmember Eddins seconded 
the motion which passed with a unanimous voice vote.  Absent:  Councilmember Clark. 
 



City of Cameron Minutes September 6, 2011 
 Page 2 
 

 6:10 p.m. Councilmember Clark returned to the Chamber and resumed his position as 
Councilmember. 
 
 Gina Hibler, 9178 NW Old Highway 36, addressed Council concerning the weed 
ordinance.  Ms. Hibler’s father received a second weed notice about his property at 210 West 
Second Street.  The fine for the weed violation was $79 and Ms. Hibler felt the fine was too 
much for weeds in a ditch.  A large part of the yard had been mowed but the ditch was difficult 
and she and her father were not able to mow the weeds.  Ms. Hibler’s father was arrested and 
taken to court.  Inspector Clyde Han reviewed the process.  A letter is sent notifying the property 
owner of the violation.  After seven (7) to ten (10) days with no response, a summons is issued.  
If the violation is abated, the case could be dismissed.  If the property owner does not come to 
court, the judge will automatically continue the case to the next court date.  If the property owner 
does not show up on the second date, a warrant is issued.  Ms. Hibler suggested Council review 
the current ordinance and use a percentage of the lot rather than the entire property.   
 
 Gary Frazier, 103 East Fourth Street, asked Council for extended time for a presentation 
on the upcoming tax initiatives.  Council extended the five (5) minute time limit an additional 25 
minutes.  Mr. Frazier stated the Council could not promote the proposed storm water sales tax 
and transportation sales tax, but as an individual he could do so on his own. Information 
presented by Mr. Frazier included:  the City of Cameron has one of the lowest sales tax rates in 
the area; all who shop in Cameron would pay the tax, not just the residents of Cameron; ¼ of one 
(1) percent tax for storm water improvements could generate $300,000 a year for the proposed 
20 year time frame; and, ½ of one (1) percent for ten (10) years has a possibility of generating 
$600,000 per year.  Mr. Frazier noted if the tax initiatives are approved by the voters, they will 
be effective the first day of the second quarter following the election.  The tax would be effective 
April 1, 2012 and there is a lag time of two (2) month before the City actually receives the 
money.  Council would then have the option of doing improvements as the money is received or 
coming up with a creative financing plan to accomplish improvements.  Mr. Frazier 
recommended a citizen oversight committee be formed to ensure the sales tax funds are spent 
properly.  Mr. Frazier suggested Council examine salaries of the top 14 employees; and, the 
numbers of days off employees of the City of Cameron are receiving.  Mr. Frazier said he felt 
action regarding salaries would be beneficial to passing the tax initiatives.  A single job title 
salary informational comparison with five (5) cities was presented to Council.  Mr. Frazier said a 
potential reduction of certain salaries could be used for capital improvements in the Public 
Works Department and Mr. Frazier asked Council to call a meeting to examine salaries. 
 

INTERIM CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

1. The second phase of the Sanitary Sewer Evaluation Study has been completed.   
Twenty-five percent of Basin One lines were videoed and will be analyzed to arrive at 
an expected cost for improvements. 

2. Interim City Manager Gaugh presented cost data for the joint efforts of the City and 
the Cameron Chamber of Commerce for the Fourth of July and the Airshow.  The 
Fourth of July expense is shared evenly with the Chamber and the City’s cost share is 
$5,021.47.   The amount falls within the City budget for the event.  The Airshow 
expense is $12,136.77.  Council had approved expenditures up to $10,000 for the 



City of Cameron Minutes September 6, 2011 
 Page 3 
 

Airshow and $15,000 for the Fourth of July.  The Chamber presented information 
showing a $56,000 direct and indirect economic impact for the City from the event.  
Council agreed there were many benefits and positive aspects for the City from the 
events. The events were free and incredible projects that were enjoyed by a large 
number of people. All the volunteers involved were thanked for their dedicated work 
during the events.  Interim City Manager Gaugh said the City’s maximum 
commitment for the two events is $25,000 and noted the City’s total funds to be 
expended are $17,158.24.  There were no objections to payment of the expenses. 

3. Interim City Manager Gaugh reported at this time, the General Fund cash balance is 
projected to be $148,984.  Staff is cautiously optimistic about the yearend balance.  
Efforts taken by Staff to help the General Fund included: letting seasonal workers go 
early, part-time positions not filled; and, no cola or step increase for employees.  
Expenses being anticipated at this time: Police Department server has crashed and 
needs to be replaced; and, work being done at the Electric Department pole yard 
driveway with the help of the Public Works Department.  Council expressed 
appreciation for moving the entrance of the pole yard out of the residential district. 

 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 
Bill 2011-57, AN ORDINANCE FOR THE CITY OF CAMERON, CLINTON AND 

DeKALB COUNTIES, MISSOURI APPROVING BUDGET ADJUSTMENT ONE (1) 
FOR THE BUDGET YEAR OF OCTOBER 1, 2010 TO SEPTEMBER 30, 2011, was read 
by title on second reading by City Clerk O’Connor.  Copies of said Bill 2011-57 were available 
for the public.  Motion was made by Councilmember Carr and seconded by Councilmember Fry 
to pass said bill on second reading.  Discussion.     Bill 2011-57 passed on second reading with a 
unanimous voice vote.   

 
Bill 2011-58, AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE DEFINITION FOR ‘RANK 

WEEDS’ IN SECTION 8-176, DEFINITIONS, OF DIVISION 3, WEEDS AND NOXIOUS 
PLANTS, IN ARTICLE III, NUISANCES, OF CHAPTER 8, OFFENSES-
MISCELLANEOUS OF THE CITY OF CAMERON CODE, was read by title on second 
reading by City Clerk O’Connor.  Copies of said Bill 2011-58 were available for the public.  
Motion was made by Councilmember Carr and seconded by Councilmember Eddins to pass said 
bill on second reading.  Discussion.   The height issue concern expressed in Public Participation 
was discussed.  Inspector Han informed Council Bill 2011-58 is a correction to the definition in 
the hay section of the Code.  Council asked the Planning and Zoning Commission to review the 
request from Ms. Hibler.  Bill 2011-58 passed on second reading with a unanimous voice vote.   

 
Bill 2011-59, AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AN AMENDMENT TO THE 

AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF CAMERON, CLINTON AND 
DeKALB COUNTIES, MISSOURI AND ALLIANCE WATER RESOURCES, INC. FOR 
MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS SERVICES AT THE CAMERON 
WASTEWATER FACILITY, was read on second reading by title by City Clerk O’Connor.  
Copies of said Bill 2011-59 were available for the public.  Motion was made by Councilmember 
Carr and seconded by Councilmember Clark to pass said bill on first reading.  Discussion.  Bill 
2011-59 passed on second reading with a unanimous voice vote.   



City of Cameron Minutes September 6, 2011 
 Page 4 
 

  
 On motion made by Councilmember Fry and seconded by Councilmember Clark said bill 
was placed on third reading, was read by title and passed by the following roll call vote:  “Aye”:  
Councilmembers:  Buck, Carr, Clark, Eddins and Fry.  “Nay” none. The Mayor thereupon 
declared said bill duly adopted and said bill was numbered ORDINANCE 5688, was thereupon 
signed by the Mayor and attested by the City Clerk. 
 

Bill 2011-60, AN ORDINANCE APPROVING THE CITY OF CAMERON 
BUDGET OF THE ENSUING FISCAL YEAR OCTOBER 1, 2011 TO SEPTEMBER 30, 
2012, was read by title on second reading by City Clerk O’Connor.  Copies of said Bill 2011-60 
were available for the public.  Motion was made by Councilmember Carr and seconded by 
Councilmember Clark to pass said bill on second reading.  Discussion.   Bill 2011-60 passed on 
second reading with a unanimous voice vote.   

 
Bill 2011-63, AN ORDINANCE FOR THE CITY OF CAMERON, CLINTON AND 

DEKALB COUNTIES, MISSOURI, REPEALING ARTICLE 23, SIGN 
REQUIREMENTS, OF CHAPTER 13, ZONING OF THE CAMERON CITY CODE AND 
ENACTING NEW ARTICLE 23,  SIGN REQUIREMENTS, THEREIN,  was read by title 
on second reading by City Clerk O’Connor.  Copies of said Bill 2011-63 were available for the 
public.  Motion was made by Councilmember Eddins and seconded by Councilmember Fry to 
pass said bill on second reading.  Discussion.   The number of signs that can be placed in a yard 
has been changed to a maximum square footage number.  Any combination of signs that total 36 
square feet will be permissible in a yard. City Attorney Elliott stated the issue is free speech and 
the ACLU monitor such regulations.  A question from the gallery was deemed out of order and 
not responded to.  Concern was expressed about the size regulation being too restrictive for 
something that is an important part of the process in elections and could be construed as too 
restrictive for freedom of speech.  Planning and Zoning Chairman Mike O’Donnell reviewed the 
following revisions: definitions; numbering of the articles/sections in the bill; number of signs; 
inflatable signs; holiday displays; roof signs; the need for inflatable signs to have a conditional 
use permit; a quick reference table; and pictures of signs for clarification.    Bill 2011-63 passed 
on second reading with a unanimous voice vote.   

 
NEW BUSINESS 

 
Bill 2011-64, AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE INTERIM CITY 

MANAGER OF THE CITY OF CAMERON, CLINTON AND DeKALB COUNTIES, 
MISSOURI TO ENTER INTO A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH 
GAMETIME ATHLETICS TO INSTALL AN IRRIGATION SYSTEM AT THE 
CAMERON SOCCER COMPLEX, was read by title by City Clerk O’Connor.  Copies of said 
Bill 2011-64 were available for the public.  Motion was made by Councilmember Clark and 
seconded by Councilmember Carr to pass said bill on first reading.  Discussion. The Park Board 
has administrative authority over their tax funds and the decision to contract for the irrigation 
system is theirs.   Bill 2011-64 is simply overseeing process on the Council’s part.   Bill 2011-64 
passed on first reading only with a unanimous voice vote.     

 



City of Cameron Minutes September 6, 2011 
 Page 5 
 

Appointment – Cameron Economic Development Corporation.  Interim City Manager 
Gaugh said the Corporation, formed in the early 1990’s, has been stagnant for several years.  
Efforts to form a public/private partnership for economic development have begun and the 
Corporation is requesting Council make a City Councilmember appointment to the Corporation.  
Mayor Buck volunteered to serve on the Corporation.  Councilmember Carr moved to appoint 
Mayor Buck as a member of the Cameron Economic Development Corporation.  
Councilmember Fry seconded the motion which passed with a unanimous voice vote. 

 
7:20 Councilmember Eddins recused herself from the Chamber citing a possible conflict 

of interest noting she is a board member of the Clinton County Enhanced Enterprise Zone. 
 
Resolution 2011-12, A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF CAMERON, CLINTON 

AND DeKALB COUNTIES, MISSOURI, TO ENDORSE THE CLINTON COUNTY 
APPLICATION FOR AN ENHANCED ENTERPRISE ZONE, was read by title by City 
Clerk O'Connor.  Copies of said Resolution 2011-12 were available for the public.  
Councilmember Carr moved to pass Resolution 2011-12.  Councilmember Fry seconded the 
motion.  Discussion. Interim City Manager Gaugh received a request from Clinton County 
Presiding Commissioner Wade Wilken asking the City of Cameron to pass this Resolution 
endorsing Clinton County’s application for Enhanced Enterprise Zone designation.  Resolution 
2011-12 passed with four (4) “Aye” votes.  Absent:  Councilmember Eddins. 

 
7:25 p.m. Councilmember Eddins returned to the Chamber and resumed her position as 

Councilmember. 
 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 
Schila Frazier, 103 East Fourth Street, asked if the Council was going to meet to discuss 

City payroll.  Mayor Buck responded a Finance Committee meeting will be held September 15, 
2011, 9:00 a.m. at City Hall.  Interim City Manager Gaugh noted that jobs differ across 
municipalities and comparisons need to be equal.  Councilmember Carr suggested hiring a 
professional to conduct a fair market value study. 

 
Gary Frazier, 103 East Fourth Street, said he had discussed his payroll concerns with four 

(4) of the five (5) Councilmembers. 
 
Julie Becker, 424 East Third Street, said the sign ordinance should consider digital signs 

for safety reasons and she distributed a letter to Council stating her opposition. The TV like 
streaming video at the intersection of Walnut and Business 36 is very distracting for young and 
old drivers alike and is a safety matter that should be addressed.   Ms. Becker also agreed that 
sign restrictions on political signs might be too strenuous.   

 
Sue Manion, 11742 Packard Lane, said it is time for the City to come together and 

congratulated the Council for working on fixing problems.  Ms. Manion stated she felt the tax 
initiative was overridden with the salary discussion and urged everyone to come to the 
Committee meeting. 

 



City of Cameron Minutes September 6, 2011 
 Page 6 
 

Michelle Fagerstone, Cameron Chamber of Commerce, thanked the City and all the 
volunteers for their cooperation during the Fourth of July and Airshow events.  Ms. Fagerstone 
said $70,000 worth of free entertainment had been provided with the two (2) events. 

 
Amy Edwards, 9937 NW Stinson Road, asked why all eight (8) candidates that applied 

for City Manager were not interviewed.  City Attorney Elliott stated the information was from a 
closed session.  Mayor Buck said a closed session will be held to conduct four (4) interviews.  
Ms. Edward questioned the use of the four (4) human resource professionals in the recruitment 
process.  Councilmember Eddins stated the five members of the City Council will have the final 
vote.  Councilmember Carr said the extended committee members will only give Council a 
recommendation.   

 
MISCELLANEOUS 

 
City Clerk O'Connor: 

• Informed Council that the Administrative Staff processed 3,682 transactions 
during the month of August at the front counter.  Citizens are utilizing the 
debit/credit and the on-line payment methods more each month.  The payment 
options have proven to be beneficial to our customers. 

 
Councilmember Clark: 

• Thanked Gary Frazier and all who spoke at the Session noting the job situation is 
a challenge. 

• Stated the employee process was inherited and employees were told if they do a 
good job then they will be compensated.  To change that policy now presents an 
ethical situation. 

• Said jobs need to be compared “apples to apples” as job descriptions across the 
state vary widely. 

• Wondered if staff could feel that they cannot trust the City and form unions which 
would have a long term effect on the City. 

• Stated that reduction of specific salaries might not impact the General Fund as 
some think.  Some salaries are funded with only 25 percent coming from the 
General Fund.  Solving a portion the payroll issues could come through attrition.  

• Noted he has no answers to the payroll question, but said questions need to be 
asked. 

 
Councilmember Carr: 

• Thanked Interim City Manager Gaugh for the good job he is doing.  It is difficult 
to wear two (2) hats i.e. Utility Director and Interim City Manager. 

 
Mayor Buck: 

• Echoed Councilmember Carr’s remarks regarding Interim City Manager Gaugh. 
• Said he would like to put an end to rumors that the Fire Department salaries are 

being cut.  This is not happening and Mayor Buck asked that people not believe 
rumors. 

 



City of Cameron Minutes September 6, 2011 
 Page 7 
 

City Attorney Elliott: 
• Strongly recommended as Council and Mayor that they continue to receive public 

input on everything, stating it is a wonderful thing to do.  City Attorney Elliott 
said Council needs to maintain control and follow decorum at Council meetings 
or it will be difficult to get things accomplished. 

• Stated the rate he charges the City is the same as it was in 1997.  In the interest of 
cost savings, City Attorney Elliott introduced Cale Griffin, a third year law 
student, who will be working at half the cost City Attorney Elliott charges.  Mr. 
Griffin will be joining Griffin, Dietrich & Elliott LLC Law Firm next year.  He 
will be attending meetings for the next twelve months. 

 
 There being no further business on motion made by Councilmember Carr and seconded 
by Councilmember Clark, the meeting was adjourned at 7:55 p.m. with a unanimous voice vote. 
 
               APPROVED: 
 
 
 

                                                                  _______________________________ 
               Mayor Frank A. Buck 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
City Clerk 


